
 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
 

APRIL 11, 2012 
 

10:00 A.M. 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
FORT VERMILION, AB 

 





  

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

 
Wednesday, April 11, 2012 

10:00 a.m. 
 

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers 
Fort Vermilion, Alberta 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

  Page 
CALL TO ORDER: 1. a) Call to Order 

 
 

 

AGENDA: 2. a) Adoption of Agenda 
 
 

 

STRATEGY & 
POLICY SESSION: 
 

3. a) None 
 

 

ADOPTION OF 
PREVIOUS MINUTES: 

4. a) Minutes of the March 28, 2012 Regular Council 
  Meeting  
 
 

7 

DELEGATIONS: 5. a) River Road Cable 
 
 b) Wilde & Company – Presentation of Audited  
  Financial Statements – 1:30 p.m. 
 
 

21 

GENERAL 
REPORTS: 
 

6. a) Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
  – March 8, 2012 
 
 b) CAO Report 
 
 

23 
 
 

37 
 

COMMUNITY & 
PROTECTIVE 
SERVICES: 
 

7. a) La Crete Community Library Society Estimated 
 Annual Operating Costs  

 
 b)  
 
 c)  
 
 

49 

OPERATIONAL 
SERVICES: 

8. a) Highway 88 Connector 
 
  b) Tender - High Level Flood Control Phase II (2:00 
  p.m.) 

53 
 

59 
 



MACKENZIE COUNTY   PAGE 2 
REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 
April 11, 2012 
 

 
 c) Tender - Sander/Plow Dump Truck (Zama) 
 
 d) La Crete Lagoon Upgrade 
 
 e)  
 
 f)  
 
 

 
61 

 
65 

 

PLANNING & 
DEVELOPMENT: 

9. a) Tender - Sale of Land – Plan 052 2048, Block 4, 
  Lot 3 (Lakeside Estates, La Crete) – 1:00 p.m. 
 
 b)  

 
 c)  
 
 

67 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 10. a) None 
 
 

 

CORPORATE 
SERVICES: 

11. a) Application to Repay In Part the Debenture under 
 Bylaw 756-10 to Alberta Capital Finance 
 Authority 

 
 b) 2011 Audited Financial Statements 
 
 c) Seniors Housing 
 
 d) 2012 Budget, LUF Workshop and Council 

 Workshop Meeting Dates 
 
 e) 2012 Ratepayer Meetings 
 
 f) FCM Conference 
 
 g)  
 
 h)  
 
 i)  
 
 

73 
 
 
 

85 
 

109 
 

113 
 
 

117 
 

119 

INFORMATION / 
CORRESPONDENCE: 
 
 
 

12.  a) Information /Correspondence 121 



MACKENZIE COUNTY   PAGE 3 
REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 
April 11, 2012 
 
IN CAMERA 
SESSION: 

13. a) Legal 
 
 b) Labour 
 
 c) Land 
 
 

 

NEXT MEETING 
DATE: 

14. a) Regular Council Meeting 
  Tuesday, May 1, 2012 
  10:00 a.m. 
  Fort Vermilion Council Chambers 
 
 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 15. a) Adjournment  
 





Agenda Item # 4. a) 

Author: C. Gabriel Review by:  CAO  
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2012 

Presented By: Joulia Whittleton, Chief Administrative Officer 

Title: Minutes of the March 28, 2012 Regular Council Meeting 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Minutes of the March 28, 2012 Regular Council meeting are attached. 
 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
 
 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That the minutes of the March 28, 2012 Regular Council meeting be adopted as 
presented. 
 

7



 
________ 

________ 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

 
Wednesday, March 28, 2012 

4:00 p.m. 
 

Zama County Office 
Zama, Alberta 

 
 

PRESENT: Bill Neufeld 
Walter Sarapuk 
Jacquie Bateman 
Peter F. Braun 
Elmer Derksen 
Dicky Driedger 
John W. Driedger 
Odell Flett 
Eric Jorgensen 
Lisa Wardley 
 

Reeve  
Deputy Reeve (arrived at 4:27 p.m.) 
Councillor  
Councillor  
Councillor  
Councillor  
Councillor  
Councillor  
Councillor  
Councillor  
 

REGRETS: 
 

  

ADMINISTRATION: 
 

 

Joulia Whittleton 
Al Hoggan 
Chris Wilcott 
Liane Lambert 
Grant Smith 
Carol Gabriel 
 

Interim CAO/Director of Corporate Services 
Director of Community & Protective Services 
Planner 
Development Officer 
Agricultural Fieldman 
Executive Assistant 
 

ALSO PRESENT:  
 

Minutes of the Regular Council meeting for Mackenzie County held on March 28, 2012 in 
the Zama County Office. 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  1. a) Call to Order 

 
 Reeve Neufeld called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 

 
AGENDA: 
 

2. a) Adoption of Agenda 
 

MOTION 12-03-205 MOVED by Councillor J. Driedger 
 
That the agenda be adopted as presented. 
 
CARRIED 

8



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 2 of 13 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Wednesday, March 28, 2012 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
STRATEGY & POLICY 
SESSION: 
 

3. a) None 
 

ADOPTION OF 
PREVIOUS MINUTES: 

4. a) Minutes of the March 15, 2012 Regular Council 
 Meeting 
 

MOTION 12-03-206 
 

MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That the minutes of the March 15, 2012 Regular Council 
meeting be adopted as presented. 
 
CARRIED 
 

DELEGATIONS: 
 

5. a) None 

GENERAL REPORTS: 6. a) None 
 

COMMUNITY & 
PROTECTIVE 
SERVICES: 
 

7. a) None 

OPERATIONAL 
SERVICES: 
 

8. a) Henry Klassen Flood Control (SE 29-106-15-W5) 

MOTION 12-03-207 MOVED by Reeve Neufeld 
 
That Council approve the flood control project on SE 29-106-
15-W5 at a maximum cost of $30,800.00 to be funded from the 
ASB operating budget. 
 
Councillor Derksen requested a recorded vote. 
 
In Favor    Opposed 
Councillor Derksen   Councillor Jorgensen 
Councillor Braun   Councillor D. Driedger 
Reeve Neufeld   Councillor Bateman 
Councillor J. Driedger  Councillor Wardley 
     Councillor Flett 
 
DEFEATED 
 

MOTION 12-03-208 MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That the flood control project on SE 29-106-15-W5 be referred 
to the Agriculture Service Board. 

9



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 3 of 13 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Wednesday, March 28, 2012 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
CARRIED 
 

PLANNING & 
DEVELOPMENT: 
 

9. a) Bylaw 855-12 Amendment to Bylaw 818-11 
 Partial Subdivision Plan Cancellation Part of NE 7-
 107-13-W5M (Plan 082 9052, Block 1, Lot 1) 
 (Spruce Road) 
 

MOTION 12-03-209 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That first reading be given to Bylaw 855-12, being an 
amendment to Bylaw 818-11 for the Partial Subdivision Plan 
Cancellation Part of NE 7-107-13-W5M (Plan 082 9052, 
Block 1, Lot 1) in accordance with Alberta Land Titles 
recommendation. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 12-03-210 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That second reading be given to Bylaw 855-12, being an 
amendment to Bylaw 818-11 for the Partial Subdivision Plan 
Cancellation Part of NE 7-107-13-W5M (Plan 082 9052, 
Block 1, Lot 1) in accordance with Alberta Land Titles 
recommendation. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 12-03-211 
(Requires Unanimous) 

MOVED by Councillor Flett 
 
That consideration be given to proceed to third reading of 
Bylaw 855-12, being an amendment to Bylaw 818-11 for the 
Partial Subdivision Plan Cancellation Part of NE 7-107-13-
W5M (Plan 082 9052, Block 1, Lot 1) in accordance with 
Alberta Land Titles recommendation. 
 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

 Deputy Reeve Sarapuk joined the meeting at 4:27 p.m. 
 

MOTION 12-03-212 MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen 
 
That third reading be given to Bylaw 855-12, being an 
amendment to Bylaw 818-11 for the Partial Subdivision Plan 
Cancellation Part of NE 7-107-13-W5M (Plan 082 9052, 
Block 1, Lot 1) in accordance with Alberta Land Titles 

10



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 4 of 13 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Wednesday, March 28, 2012 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

recommendation. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 9. b)  Bylaw 856-12 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to 
 Increase the Agricultural “A” Zoning Maximum 
 Subdivision Size to 80 Acres 
 

MOTION 12-03-213 
 

MOVED by Councillor J. Driedger 
 
That first reading of Bylaw 856-12 be TABLED until the 
Municipal Development Plan is amended to allow the 
fragmentation of Better Agricultural Lands into 80 acre splits, 
prior to amending the Land Use Bylaw. 
 
Councillor J. Driedger requested a recorded vote. 
 
In Favor    Opposed 
Councillor Derksen   Councillor Jorgensen 
Councillor Braun   Councillor D. Driedger 
Councillor J. Driedger  Deputy Reeve Sarapuk 
Reeve Neufeld   Councillor Bateman 
     Councillor Wardley 
     Councillor Flett 
 
DEFEATED 
 

MOTION 12-03-214 
 

MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That the Municipal Development Plan conditions with respect 
to the fragmentation of agricultural land will be upheld and that 
the applicant be notified. 
 
Councillor Derksen requested a recorded vote. 
 
In Favor    Opposed 
Councillor Jorgensen  Councillor Derksen 
Deputy Reeve Sarapuk  Councillor Braun 
Councillor Bateman   Councillor J. Driedger 
Councillor Wardley   Reeve Neufeld 
Councillor Flett 
Councillor D. Driedger 
 
CARRIED 
 

 Reeve Neufeld recessed the meeting at 5:00 p.m. and 

11



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 5 of 13 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Wednesday, March 28, 2012 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

reconvened the meeting at 5:12 p.m. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: 10. a) Bylaw 847-12 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to 
 Amend Subdivision Security Provisions 
 

 Reeve Neufeld called the public hearing for Bylaw 847-12 to 
order at 5:12 p.m. 
 
Reeve Neufeld asked if the public hearing for proposed Bylaw 
847-12 was properly advertised.  Christopher Wilcott, Planner, 
answered that the bylaw was advertised in accordance with the 
Municipal Government Act. 
 
Reeve Neufeld asked the Development Authority to outline the 
proposed Land Use Bylaw Amendment.  Christopher Wilcott, 
Planner, presented the Development Authority’s submission 
and indicated that first reading was given on January 10, 2012. 
 
Reeve Neufeld asked if Council has any questions of the 
proposed Land Use Bylaw Amendment.  Clarification was 
requested regarding the exact amendment. 
 
Reeve Neufeld asked if any submissions were received in 
regards to proposed Bylaw 847-12.  No submissions were 
received. 
 
Reeve Neufeld asked if there was anyone present who would 
like to speak in regards to the proposed Bylaw 847-12.  There 
was no one present to speak to the proposed bylaw. 
 
Reeve Neufeld closed the public hearing for Bylaw 847-12 at 
5:17 p.m. 
 

MOTION 12-03-215 MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That second reading be given to Bylaw 847-12, being a Land 
Use Bylaw amendment to amend the County Land Use Bylaw 
(791-10) as presented. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 12-03-216 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That third reading be given to Bylaw 847-12, being a Land Use 
Bylaw amendment to amend the County Land Use Bylaw (791-
10) as presented. 

12



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 6 of 13 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Wednesday, March 28, 2012 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
CARRIED 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: 10. b) Bylaw 853-12 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to Add 
 Manufactured Home – Double Wide, Manufactured 
 Home - Modular Home, Garage – Attached, Garage – 
 Detached and Shop to the Hamlet General “HG” 
 Zoning 
 

 Reeve Neufeld called the public hearing for Bylaw 853-12 to 
order at 5:17 p.m. 
 
Reeve Neufeld asked if the public hearing for proposed Bylaw 
853-12 was properly advertised.  Liane Lambert, Development 
Officer, answered that the bylaw was advertised in accordance 
with the Municipal Government Act. 
 
Reeve Neufeld asked the Development Authority to outline the 
proposed Land Use Bylaw Amendment.  Liane Lambert, 
Development Officer, presented the Development Authority’s 
submission and indicated that first reading was given on 
February 13, 2012. 
 
Reeve Neufeld asked if Council has any questions of the 
proposed Land Use Bylaw Amendment.  Clarification regarding 
shops. 
 
Reeve Neufeld asked if any submissions were received in 
regards to proposed Bylaw 853-12.  No submissions were 
received. 
 
Reeve Neufeld asked if there was anyone present who would 
like to speak in regards to the proposed Bylaw 853-12.  There 
was no one present to speak to the proposed bylaw. 
 
Reeve Neufeld closed the public hearing for Bylaw 853-12 at 
5:21 p.m. 
 

MOTION 12-03-217 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That second reading be given to Bylaw 853-12, being a Land 
Use Bylaw Amendment to add Manufactured Homes – Double 
Wide, Manufactured Home – Modular Homes, Garage-
Attached, Garage-Detached and Shop to the Hamlet General 
“HG” zoning. 
 

13



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 7 of 13 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Wednesday, March 28, 2012 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

CARRIED 
 

MOTION 12-03-218 MOVED by Councillor Derksen 
 
That third reading be given to Bylaw 853-12, being a Land Use 
Bylaw Amendment to add Manufactured Homes – Double 
Wide, Manufactured Home – Modular Homes, Garage-
Attached, Garage-Detached and Shop to the Hamlet General 
“HG” zoning. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 Reeve Neufeld recessed the meeting at 5:21 p.m. and 
reconvened the meeting at 6:00 p.m. 
 

 9. c) Bylaw 857-12 Land Use Bylaw Amendment 
 Permitting Equestrian Uses in Urban Fringe (UF) 
 Land Use District 
 

MOTION 12-03-219 
 

MOVED by Councillor Derksen 
 
That first reading be given to Bylaw 857-12, being a Land Use 
Bylaw amendment to amend the County Land Use Bylaw (791-
10), to permit equestrian uses in the Urban Fringe (UF) Land 
Use District as amended. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 12-03-220 
(Requires 2/3) 

MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That the Land Use Bylaw Amendment applicant for Bylaw 857-
12 be refunded the application fee in the amount of $150.00. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 9. d)  Bylaw 858-12 Plan Cancellation for Consolidation 
 Purposes Plan 962 4275, Block 4, Lots 28 and 29 
 (Zama) 
 

MOTION 12-03-221 
 

MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That first reading be given to Bylaw 858-12, being a Plan 
Cancellation Bylaw to cancel and consolidate Plan 962 4275, 
Block 4, Lots 28 and 29 into one lot in the Hamlet of Zama, 
subject to public hearing input. 
 

14



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 8 of 13 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Wednesday, March 28, 2012 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

CARRIED 
 

 9. e) Development Permit Application 20-DP-12 Dwelling-
 Single Detached Development within One Mile of the 
 La Crete Airport (La Crete Rural) 
 

MOTION 12-03-222 
 

MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That Development Permit Application 20-DP-12, in the name of 
William and Gertrude Schmidt, on Plan 902 3717, Block 1, Lot 
1 (Part of SE 1-106-15-W5M), be APPROVED as presented. 
 
 

MOTION 12-03-223 
 

MOVED by Councillor J. Driedger 
 
That the vote on Motion 12-03-222 for the Development Permit 
Application 20-DP-12, in the name of William and Gertrude 
Schmidt, on Plan 902 3717, Block 1, Lot 1 (Part of SE 1-106-
15-W5M), be TABLED for further information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 12-03-224 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That items 11. a) CAO Contract and 11. b) Bylaw 859-12 CAO 
Appointment be TABLED to the in-camera session. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 11. c) Bylaw 841-11 Organizational and Procedural Bylaw 
 

MOTION 12-03-225 
 

MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the organizational and procedural bylaw be brought back 
to include the recording of all council motions. 
 
Deputy Reeve Sarapuk requested a recorded vote. 
 
In Favor    Opposed 
Councillor Jorgensen  Councillor Wardley 
Councillor J. Driedger  Deputy Reeve Sarapuk 
Reeve Neufeld   Councillor D. Driedger 
Councillor Bateman   Councillor Derksen 
Councillor Flett   Councillor Braun 
 
DEFEATED 

15



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 9 of 13 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Wednesday, March 28, 2012 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
 11. d) Canada Post Office – Hamlet of La Crete 

 
MOTION 12-03-226 MOVED by Councillor Derksen 

 
That Councillor Braun be authorized to attend the meeting with 
Canada Post on April 5, 2012 in Grande Prairie along with the 
Reeve and CAO. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 12-03-227 MOVED by Councillor J. Driedger 
 
That the following issues be discussed with Canada Post at the 
meeting on April 5, 2012: 

• Size of facility 
• Waiting times for postal box 
• Parking issues 
• Building condition 
• Tompkins postal facility 

 
CARRIED 
 

 11. e) Postponement of April 25, 2012 Alberta Sustainable 
 Resource Development Land Sale 
 

MOTION 12-03-228 
 

MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That Alberta Sustainable Resource Development (AB SRD) be 
advised of Council’s support to postpone the April 25, 2012 
agricultural land sale to on or before June 15, 2012 subject to 
AB SRD using the existing appraisals to set the reserved bids. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 12-03-229 
 

MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the Agricultural Land Use Planning Committee continue to 
work with Alberta Sustainable Resource Development. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 Reeve Neufeld recessed the meeting at 7:20 p.m. and 
reconvened the meeting at 7:30 p.m. 
 

 11. f) Seniors’ Housing in Mackenzie Region 

16



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 10 of 13 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Wednesday, March 28, 2012 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
 The vote on Motion 12-03-193 was tabled from the March 15, 

2012 council meeting. 
 

MOTION 12-03-193 MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen 
 
That the Mackenzie County Council support a new housing 
board consisting of 4 representatives from the County, 2 from 
the Town of High Level, 2 from the Town of Rainbow Lake and 
1 from the First Nations (once a funding commitment has been 
made) with quorum being 6 and all financial matters requiring 
2/3 majority.  The new housing board shall also ensure that the 
Heimstaed Lodge in La Crete maintain its current service level 
or above. 
 
Councillor Braun requested a recorded vote. 
 
In Favor    Opposed 
Councillor Jorgensen  Councillor Derksen 
Deputy Reeve Sarapuk  Councillor Braun 
Councillor Bateman   Councillor J. Driedger 
Councillor Flett   Reeve Neufeld 
     Councillor Wardley 
     Councillor D. Driedger 
 
DEFEATED 
 

MOTION 12-03-230 
 

MOVED by Reeve Neufeld 
 
That the County’s Tri-Council Committee members bring 
forward a recommendation to the Tri-Council Seniors 
Committee for the Mackenzie Housing Management Board to 
submit an application for seniors lodges. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 12-03-231 
 

MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the County’s Tri-Council Committee members take 
forward on April 3, 2012 an option for discussion of a two tiered 
structure, with the top tier being the requisitioning board made 
up of municipally appointed members and the second tier 
being the two separate operating entities. 
 
Councillor Derksen requested a recorded vote. 
 

17



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 11 of 13 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Wednesday, March 28, 2012 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

In Favor    Opposed 
Councillor Bateman   Councillor Derksen 
Councillor Wardley   Councillor Braun 
Councillor Flett   Councillor J. Driedger 
Deputy Reeve Sarapuk  Reeve Neufeld 
Councillor D. Driedger 
Councillor Jorgensen 
 
CARRIED 
 

INFORMATION/ 
CORRESPONDENCE: 
 

12. a) Information/Correspondence 

MOTION 12-03-232 
 

MOVED by Councillor Braun  
 
That the information/correspondence items be accepted for 
information purposes. 
 
CARRIED 
 

IN CAMERA SESSION: 
 

 

MOTION 12-03-233 
 

MOVED by Councillor Derksen 
 
That Council move in-camera to discuss issues under the 
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Regulations 
18 (1) at 8:29 p.m. 
 11. a) CAO Contract 
 11. b) Bylaw 859-12 Appointment of Chief   
  Administrative Officer 
 13. a) Legal 
 13. b) Labour 
 13. c) Land 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 12-03-234 
 

MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen 
 
That Council move out of camera at 9:33 p.m. 
 
CARRIED 
 

CORPORATE 
SERVICES: 
 

11. a) CAO Contract (In-Camera) 
 
 

MOTION 12-03-235 MOVED by Councillor Bateman 

18



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 12 of 13 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Wednesday, March 28, 2012 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
That the CAO contract be approved in principle and that the 
Reeve and Deputy Reeve be authorized to negotiate and 
finalize the CAO contract and bring it back to Council for 
information. 
 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

 11. b)  Bylaw 859-12 Appointment of Chief Administrative 
 Officer 
 

MOTION 12-03-236 
(requires 2/3) 
 

MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That first reading be given to Bylaw 859-12 being a bylaw to 
appoint Joulia Whittleton to the position of Chief Administrative 
Officer effective March 28, 2012. 
 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

MOTION 12-03-237 
(requires 2/3) 
 

MOVED by Councillor D. Driedger 
 
That second reading be given to Bylaw 859-12 being a bylaw 
to appoint Joulia Whittleton to the position of Chief 
Administrative Officer effective March 28, 2012. 
 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

MOTION 12-03-238 
(Requires Unanimous) 

MOVED by Deputy Reeve Sarapuk 
 
That consideration be given to go to third reading of Bylaw 
859-12 being a bylaw to appoint Joulia Whittleton to the 
position of Chief Administrative Officer. 
 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

MOTION 12-03-239 
(requires 2/3) 
 

MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That third reading be given to Bylaw 859-12 being a bylaw to 
appoint Joulia Whittleton to the position of Chief Administrative 
Officer effective March 28, 2012. 
 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

 13.a) Legal 
 

MOTION 12-03-240 MOVED by Councillor Braun 

19



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 13 of 13 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Wednesday, March 28, 2012 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

  
That the County explore emergency services options as 
discussed. 
 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

MOTION 12-03-241 
 

MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen 
 
That all Councillors be authorized to attend the gravel pit public 
meeting on April 4, 2012 in Fort Vermilion. 
 
DEFEATED 
 

NEXT MEETING 
DATE: 
 

14. a) Regular Council Meeting 
 Wednesday, April 11, 2012 
 10:00 a.m. 
 Fort Vermilion Council Chambers 
 

ADJOURNMENT: 15. a) Adjournment  
 

MOTION 12-03-242 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That the meeting be adjourned at 9:42 p.m. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 
These minutes will be presented to Council for approval on April 11, 2012 
 
 
 
   
Bill Neufeld 
Reeve 

 Joulia Whittleton 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

20



Agenda Item # 5. a) 
 

Author: Al Hoggan Reviewed By:  CAO JW 
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2012 

Presented By: Al Hoggan, Director of Community and Protective Services 

Title: DELEGATION 
River Road Cable 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Council Motion 11-90-773 (September 23, 2011) approved River Road Cable to rent the 
office space allocated in the La Crete Fire Hall for $150.00 per month plus utilities. On 
October 3, 2011 administration met with the owner who at that time indicated that their 
preference would be to vacate the premises as they would be unable to afford the rent 
and the utilities. It was agreed to allow them 90 days to vacate with an agreed 
termination of occupancy of February 1, 2012.  River Road Cable did not vacate as 
previously agreed upon and a further conversation was had with the owner with a follow 
up letter of February 15, 2012 indicating that administration would require them to 
vacate April 1st of 2012.   
 
The letter to River Road Cable also indicated that back rent to October 1, 2011 would 
be charged to March 31, 2012 or their actual vacate date whichever was earlier.  
 
Subsequently the owner indicated that River Road Cable would be interested in 
entering into a medium to long term lease with the County on the office space. 
Administration then began working on the lease but it was brought to our attention that 
there is a tax notification on River Road Cable property. This combined with the rental 
arrears caused administration to discontinue the lease process until such time as all 
arrears were brought to date or an agreement to clear the arrears was signed. To this 
date neither has occurred. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
N/A 
 
 

21



Author: Al Hoggan Reviewed By:  CAO  
 

 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That a lease with River Road Cable not be entered into until such time as either the 
arrears are brought up to date or an agreement is reached to bring the arrears up to 
date. 
 
 

22



Agenda Item # 6. a) 

Author: C. Gabriel Review by:  CAO  
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2012 

Presented By: Joulia Whittleton, Chief Administrative Officer 

Title: Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – March 8, 
2012 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Information item.  The adopted minutes of the March 8, 2012 meeting are attached. 
 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
 
 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That the Municipal Planning Commission meeting minutes of March 8, 2012 be received 
for information. 
 

23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



Agenda Item # 6. b) 

Author: C. Gabriel Review by:  CAO  
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2012 

Presented By: Joulia Whittleton, Chief Administrative Officer 

Title: CAO Report 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
CAO and Director reports are attached for information. 
 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
 
 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That the CAO report for April 2012 be received for information. 
 

37



Mackenzie County 
Monthly CAO Report to Council – April 2012 

First of all, thank you for entrusting the CAO responsibilities to me.  I am excited to ascertain a good 
working relationship with all involved: councilors, staff, communities, business partners, and other 
governments. 

Since my initial appointment, a general staff meeting was held and the organizational changes were 
introduced.  The roles of council and staff were discussed. My focus is to continue enhancing our 
municipal services, customer services, improving communications (internal and external), and being a 
fiscally responsible and progressive organization.   

As Council is well aware, we have multiple large projects and initiatives scheduled for 2012 and/or 
carried over from 2011: 

1. Long Term Financial Planning – having a fiscally stable and financially responsible municipality is 
one of my main priorities. 

As Council is well aware, our major revenues are derived from taxes with a large portion of 
these being from linear assessments.  Therefore, having a stable assessment base is most crucial 
to our municipality.  In today’s world, global economic downturns do affect our County. Having 
solid financial and sustainability plans is therefore a necessity to survive the downturns while 
minimizing impacts on our communities and maintaining our level of service.   

The departments have been working on the multi-year capital plans.  These were initially 
drafted by the Finance Department.  The Finance Department has been drafting a long term 
financial plan and will be using the multi-year capital plans data as reviewed and recommended 
by the departments.  The first draft is scheduled to be presented to Council by the end of May 
2012.  I am committed to work through this challenge with Council and with support of 
ratepayers. 

2. Communication Protocol – I am in the process of developing a communication protocol policy 
between councilors, CAO, and management team members.  My commitment is to establish 
clear communication routes that will improve working relationships for all.  As the first step to 
reestablish our communications, monthly CAO and Directors reports will be presented to 
Council.  The Directors will be attending all regular council meetings. 

3. Policies – I am committed to continue reviewing the County’s policies with Council and 
administrative team to assure transparency - having clear Council directions through strong 
policies adds to productivity of all; policies ensure uniform levels of services across the County 
are provided. 

4. Project list – Bill Kostiw was hired as the Executive Director of Infrastructure Development & 
Government Relationships on a temporary basis to assist with moving some projects and 
initiatives ahead as is or will be prioritized by Council and myself.  I feel it is necessary as we 
have experienced a significant staff turnover and organizational changes in the last ten months 
and some positions remain open today (it will take up to three months to find a suitable 
individual to fill in the Director of Corporate Services position).  Bill along with the management 

38



team and I have discussed the list of projects and initiatives during the past week.  The list is 
attached for your information and input (not listed in order of priority). 

5. 2011 Audit and Financial Statements were completed and scheduled for presentation to 
Council by the auditors at the April 11, 2012 meeting.  

6. AUPE negotiations are being scheduled in May (tentative dates are May 3-4 or 17-18). 

7. 2012 Budget is being reviewed with the management team for final presentation to Council at 
their May 1st meeting along with the 2012 tax bylaw. 

8. AB Agriculture and Rural Development – I have contacted Brent Patterson as a follow up on a 
discussion between our Council and the previous CAO regarding establishing a steering 
committee to review/establish comprehensive surface water management master plans for the 
new agricultural lands.  I was advised that their intent is to set up an initial meeting with our 
municipality sometime in mid-April. 

9. Fort Vermilion Gravel Pit – public meeting was held April 4, 2012.  Administration is doing their 
due diligence to ensure all potential issues are addressed with respect to this proposed 
development.  We are in the process of engaging a professional environmental reclamation 
specialist to assist the County with this task.  

10. Seniors Housing in the Region – a meeting of the Tri-council Committee was held on April 3, 
2012 in High Level.  Mike Leathwood, Assistant Deputy Minister (Municipal Affairs and Housing) 
was present.  A consultant will be appointed by the Ministry to assist the municipalities with 
establishing a suitable organizational structure. 

Please review the attached Directors reports and we will be happy to answer any questions Council may 
have.  The CAO and Director’s reports will be presented to Council monthly during the first meeting of 
each month. 

 
I am looking forward to working with all involved in delivering services to the County’s ratepayers and 
developing our municipality and the Region. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Joulia Whittleton 

39



Monthly Report to CAO  

For the month of April, 2012 

From: Al Hoggan, Director of Community and Protective Services 

Annual Operating Programs, Projects and Activities 

Program/Activity/Project Timeline Comments 
La Crete Residential Waste 
Pickup 

Committee/Late 
April, 2012 
Council/ Early 
May, 2012 

The draft By-law and contractor RFP have been 
completed and will go to the Committee in several 
weeks. Pending any changes and the Committees 
approval the program will come to the Council 
table in early May. Should the program receive 
approval from council we will publish the request 
for Proposal and open bids early June with an 
anticipated start date of July 15, 2012. 

Parks and Recreation Ongoing The Parks department is having its pre-season 
meeting with the caretakers later in April. 
Firewood has been purchased and plans are 
continuing for a busy summer. 

Emergency/Disaster Planning Ongoing Numerous members of staff have completed both 
the Basic Emergency Management training 
provided by Alberta Emergency Management 
Agency. As well several senior administration 
members have completed the EOC, and Advanced 
Emergency Management training.  
 
There is an emergency training “tabletop” exercise 
planned for Zama for April 12. This will allow us to 
amend and repair our Municipal Emergency Plan 
as required. 
 

La Crete Community Library 
annual operating costs 

Completed The La Crete Library Society request for assistance 
for their future library building has been 
completed. The operating costs have been 
forwarded on to the Society and the Library Board. 

La Crete Airport In Progress A user meeting was held April 2, 2012 to discuss 
the new proposed lot development. A consensus 
was reached with the user group and 
administration is working towards the surveying 
and lot plans with a view to allow construction 
mid-May 2012. 
 
 
 

40



The Instrument approach is currently in progress 
and we should have it functional by the fall. 
 
Tree clearing at the east end has been completed 
and we are currently putting a plan to clear the 
west end shelter belt as well. PAPI lights should be 
operational by the fall. 

La Crete Swimming Pool On going Administration is investigating good business plan 
templates and will continue assisting the pool 
committee with creating a useable business plan. 

Fire Departments On going Our fire departments continue to train to meet the 
province’s anticipated minimum training standard. 
 
Haz mat training has been scheduled as per the 
MOU. 
 
I have met with the CAO of Rainbow Lake and the 
Director of Emergency Management for the Town 
of High Level to begin working on a long term Haz 
Mat Mutual Aid agreement. 

Facilities On going We continue to maintain our buildings and as 
witnessed, several of our buildings have sprung a 
leak with the spring melt and the facilities 
department is taking steps to resolve these issues. 

Fort Vermilion Airport On going The trees at the west end will come down later 
this spring and that will allow the PAPI lights to be 
activated at the Fort airport. There has been some 
interest for additional leases 

Occupational Health & Safety On going We continue to make progress with our OH&S 
program and our well on track to COR certification 
for the fall of 2013. Numerous site/building 
inspections have been completed and we have 
resolved multiple safety issues in our County 
operations. 

 

Capital Projects 

Projects Timeline Comments 
Fort Vermilion Office Paving August 1, 

2012 
We are currently tendering out the project and hope 
to open bids in mid May. Depending on contractor 
availability we hope to have this project completed by 
the 1st of August. 

Fort Vermilion Ice Plant Overhaul Sept. 15, 
2012 

The ice plant is now shut down and SYMCO 
Refrigeration will be arriving in late April to disconnect 
and remove the Compressor units. We will be required 
to ship the units to Edmonton. The anticipated date for 
re-installation is late August. 

41



Other capital projects On going There are a variety of other capital projects that will 
begin later this year. Many are in the early planning 
stages. 

 

Personnel 

We have recently hired Corny Wiebe as our building and facility maintenance technician. His first day on 
the job was April 10, 2012. 

The By-law Enforcement Officer position is in the interview process and we hope to have this position 
filled by June 1, 2012. 

The Fort Vermilion Fire Chief has resigned effective April 15, 2012 and we are currently reviewing our 
options in this matter. 

Other 

My staff and I continue to have our weekly planning meetings and are anticipating a busy but productive 
summer season. 

42



Monthly Report to CAO  

For the month of April, 2012 

From: John Klassen, Director of Operations 

Annual Operating Programs, Projects and Activities 

Program/Activity/Project Timeline Comments 
Dust Control Adds April 30th  Application deadline end of April 
Regraveling June 2012 There were no trucks available during the window of 

opportunity therefore we plan to start late May or 
early June 

Ponton Road August 31st  We have negotiated a 20 meter ROW with the land 
owner and plan to have the road moved by the end of 
August 

Drainage April 15th  Currently opening culverts and ditches as required to 
allow spring runoff 

 

Capital Projects 

Projects Timeline Comments 
Rural Water Line April 15th Compiling results of the surveys which will indicate the 

number of interested parties currently adjacent to the 
water line 

Zama Access Tender May 1st  Tender closing date 
88 Connector  To be discussed at the April 11th Council meeting 
La Crete Lagoon Upgrade  RFD at the April 11th Council Meeting 
Grader Replacement April 2012 The first grader should arrive and be delivered to Zama 

by the 13th  
Truck replacements April 30th  Operations department purchased 1 half ton, 2 - ¾ ton 

trucks and 1 – 550 cab & chasse of which we still need 
to mount the deck 

15’ mower and side arm April 15th  Currently obtaining quotes 
 

Personnel 

We are currently advertising for a PW’s Admin Assistant and the vacant equipment operator positions, 
one in LC and one in FV. There is also one equipment operator from LC that is on medical leave and the 
timeline is yet to be determined. 

Other 

_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

43



Monthly Report to CAO  

For the month of April, 2012 

From: Grant Smith, Agricultural Fieldman 

Annual Operating Programs, Projects and Activities 

Program/Activity/Project Timeline Comments 
Drainage Policy Spring 2012 This policy has been under review from the ASB, 

Alberta Environment and Public Works. Changes 
have been drafted and will be reviewed at next ASB 
meeting. 
 
 

Draft Road Ditch Policy Spring/summer 
2012 

This policy is being created to help administration 
deal with numerous requests from ratepayers who 
want to direct runoff water down County road 
ditches. 

Rental Pump & Pipe Spring 
/summer/fall 

Activity has begun as we are receiving requests. 
Rental rate is $300 + GST for 48 hrs. There is 1 mile 
of pipe on trailer. Pump is tractor powered. 

Roadside Spraying Contract April 17 ASB 
mtg. 

RFP’s were publicly advertised. ASB will review on 
April 17th. 

 

Capital Projects 

Projects Timeline Comments 
High Level Drainage Phase II  Publicly tendered. Tenders will be opened on April 11, 

2012. Construction will commence in June and 
completion is October 31, 2012. Length of project is 3 
miles. Project is located 6 miles east of High Level and 
will run south from Hwy 58 at Rge Rd 18-4. 

 

Personnel 

_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Other 

_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

44



1 
 

Monthly Report to CAO  

For the month of April, 2012 

From: William (Bill) Kostiw, Executive Director of Infrastructure 
Development and Government Relations 

The intent of this project list is to determine the status & priority of the major infrastructure 
projects in Mackenzie County as of May 1, 2012.  These are not necessarily in order of Council 
priority but are for discussion purposes.  The April provincial election could be a serious factor 
in future development. 

1. Highway 88 Base & Paving 

Project is scheduled for completion in the fall of 2012.  The risk of not completing this 
fall is twofold.  The contractor’s schedules may not allow enough time or resources for 
completion this fall.  Secondly the province may drag on final approvals and funding.  
Council should continue to lobby the province to ensure completion this fall. 

2. Highway 88 Connector Base/Paving Project 

This project has become a key link to the south with Highway 88 getting asphalt.  
Alberta Transportation is providing some support and the project could be completed 
over the next two years if council is willing. 

Completion of this project would save the County a significant amount of maintenance 
funds and open up resource road funds for other County projects.  Estimated cost all in 
is $20,000,000.00 over the next 2 years. 

3. Zama Access Base Paving Project 

This project is the road to the vast resources in the NW part of the County as well as 
Alberta.  The known oil & gas extraction to date is estimated at less than 25% of the 
overall reserves.  The operating strategy for the extraction is shifting from conventional 
to E.O.R. either with CO2 or other processes.  In any event the resources can still 
provide the County with significant taxes over the next decades.  The County should 
continue to develop the infrastructure and lobby government for enhanced oil recovery 
and the Mackenzie pipelines.  We should also continue lobbying for provincial status on 
this road.  

Estimated cost for 2012 – 2013 is $3,006,000.00. 

4. Roads to New Agriculture Lands 

This is an essential development project that will help sustain and enhance Agriculture 
in the County.  Project development & planning is ongoing with scope of project to be 

45



2 
 

determined by Council.  The County should continue a strong lobby to secure a large 
portion of the land sale revenue for road construction.   

5. Rural Water Supply Project 

This project will enhance quality of life and stimulate economic development especially 
in our rural areas.  The intent is to develop the project in phases which has started with 
the installation of the line from Fort Vermilion to La Crete.  The next proposed phase is 
to go south of La Crete to the sawmill or Buffalo Head area.  Council will need to review 
the overall project to determine next steps. 

Estimated Costs T.B.D. 

6. High Capacity Power Lines 

The development of high capacity power grids are crucial to the economic development 
in the whole County.  The line west of High Level will likely continue on south of 
Rainbow Lake to the Fontas road area.  The development of a connector from Highway 
35 across the Peace River at Tompkins then to La Crete is much needed and the County 
should continue to lobby ATCO and the Province.  The line from Blumenort to Mustus is 
being developed.  These developments produce both economic opportunity and 
immediate tax revenue.  The County should make every effort to move these projects 
forward. 

7. Railway Development & Upgrading 

The main rail system in our County runs from Peace River to High Level and on to Hay 
River.  This line is in desperate need of upgrading.  There is tremendous opportunity for 
industrial development along this line.  The other two rail systems that could affect 
Mackenzie County are the Watino rebuild and the Fort Nelson to Prince Rupert line.  It 
would be very desirable to have County members on both NADC and NCDC as well as 
other provincial boards to lobby for these projects. 

8. Tolko & Footner (Ainsworth) 

These forestry developments currently provide several hundred jobs and property taxes 
to the municipalities.  The Footner project has been shut down for the last years for 
several reasons the economy, competition, rail freight costs, etc.  In my recent 
discussions with Ainsworth they indicated that new technology and product 
development may give them the incentive to reopen in the near future.  The site is 
currently being used for a rail transfer site and some product development.  

We have been invited to a “brainstorming” meeting to discuss opportunities for the 
future and to see if there is some mutual benefit or action we can take to get the plant 
back into production. 

9. Highway 58 West / East 

46



3 
 

This is a long term project that when complete will provide great economical 
opportunities to all sectors of Mackenzie County.  The road connection to Fort Nelson 
will also give us access to high capacity rail with connections to the ports in Prince 
Rupert & Vancouver.  This could really benefit our agriculture & forestry industries.  The 
connection to the East of 88 is graded to Garden River and the construction from 
Garden River to Peace Point has not been committed by the Feds at this time. REDI has 
been lobbying for this project with support from NADC & NCDC as well as the Alberta 
Government. 

10. Airports 

There are at least nine airports in the overall County area.  The County is directly 
responsible for the Fort Vermilion and La Crete airports.  Two of the other airports are 
Rainbow Lake and High Level which are operated by the towns of Rainbow Lake & High 
Level.  Other airports are Zama, Fox Lake, Garden River, John D’or Prairie & Indian 
Cabins.  The challenge is to get viable commercial air service.  There are some 
preliminary discussions happening with the Edmonton Airport authority about 
competitive alternate service to High Level.  The High Level Airport could be security 
ready if funding was available. 

11. Tompkins Ferry Upgrade & New Bridge 

Alberta Transportation has indicated that there will be some upgrades to the ferry this 
spring.  They also indicated that they have budgeted $1,700,000.00 for upgrading in 
2013.  This should increase the ferry capacity on the short term.  On the long term the 
County should continue to lobby for a new bridge by 2020. 

12. Other Projects of Interest are: 

 A) La Crete Lagoon Upgrade 
 B) La Crete Library 
 C) Swimming Pools 
 D) Water Management (ASB) 
 E) Rocky Lane Access Upgrade 
 F) La Crete North Access Upgrade 
 G) La Crete South Access Upgrade 
 H) Truck Access Fort Vermilion (Tall Cree) 
 I) Gravel Supply Long Term & Reclamation 
 J) High Level Golf Course Road Paving 
 K) Hamlet Water & Sewer Upgrades 
 L) Railside Industrial Development 
 M) Mustus Energy 
 N) Boyer River Bridge (Boyer FN) 
 

47



4 
 

In summary any projects that could enhance our tax base, create jobs and are complementary 
to our citizens should be pursued.  Perhaps Council could schedule a strategic planning 
workshop to fully explore these opportunities. 

 

48



Agenda Item # 7. a) 
 

Author: Al Hoggan Reviewed By:  CAO JW 
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2012 

Presented By: Al Hoggan, Director of Community and Protective Services 

Title: La Crete Community Library Society Estimated Annual 
Operating Costs 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Council Motion 11-11-948 “That administration assist the La Crete Community Library 
Society in compiling cost information for a stand alone facility in conjunction with the 
Mackenzie Library Board”. 
 
Administration has completed the operation cost estimates and has provided the same 
to the La Crete Community Library Society and to the Mackenzie Library Board. The 
estimated annual operational cost is attached for your review. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That the La Crete Library estimated annual operating costs be received for information. 
 

49



50



 
 

            
             
             
             
             
             
              
 
Mackenzie County Library Board 
La Crete Library Society 
Mackenzie County 
 
April 2, 2012 
 
Proposed La Crete Library Operational Costs: 
 
Chairperson Beth Kappelar, 

 
As directed by Mackenzie County Municipal Council, administration has been 
pleased to assist in the compilation of the anticipated operational costs of the 
proposed 4,900 square foot library style building. These costs are approximations 
and have been calculated by comparing and interpolating the operational costs of 
similar sized buildings and libraries in northern and central Alberta. As much as 
possible we have attempted to make this a realistic document but as there are 
many variables in operational costs we can only provide estimates based on our 
findings. 
 
Some of the variables included salaries, the rising cost of electricity, building 
maintenance, and the method of heating and cooling the building. In particular 
these figures have been generated using the following assumptions: 
 

1. Approximately 4,900 square feet; 
2. Hourly wage figures of $16.50/hour for two full-time staff; 
3. Hourly wage figures of $14.00/hour for two part-time staff; 
4. Hourly wage figures of $12.50/hour for one part-time book distribution staff;  
5. Total salary figure includes the additional (approximate) 25% for WCB, 

health/dental and Group Plan benefits. 
 
These calculations do not include the cost of inventory, computer systems, 
shelving units, or other capital style expenditures that would be included in the 
building project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

51



 
 
 
 
 
COSTS 
 
Expense    Annual Cost 
 
Salaries    $111, 807.80 
Telephone/Fax   $2,441.94 
Internet    $1,272.32 
Office Supplies   $5,000.00 
Natural Gas    $2,641.96 
Electrical Power   $4,094.59 
Water     $1,200.00 
Security (Alarm System)  $1,500.00 
IT Services    $2,500.00 
Janitorial    $20,400.00 ($20/hour x 4 hour/day x 5 days a week)  

 Janitorial Supplies   $1,500.00 
Maintenance    $12,000.00 (operational, not capital maintenance projects) 

Snow Removal/Grass cutting $3,000.00 
Promotional    $1,500.00 
 
 
Total     $170,858.61   
 
 
 
I would be pleased to discuss this matter with you or the Board at any time and 
should you have any questions please feel free to contact myself at your 
convenience. 
 
Regards, 
 
 
 
Al Hoggan 
Director of Community and Protective Services 
Mackenzie County 
(780) 927-3718 
(780) 841-5102 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

52



Agenda Item # 8. a) 
 

Author: B. Kostiw Reviewed by:  CAO JW 
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2012 

Presented By: William (Bill) Kostiw – Executive Director of Infrastructure 
Development and Government Relations 

Title:  Highway 88 Connector 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Council has identified two major Resource Road Projects, the Zama Access and the 
Highway 88 Connector.  Zama Access has been tendered and closes on the May 1, 
2012 Council Meeting.  Council has budgeted $12,400,000 through a Borrowing Bylaw 
for the Highway 88 Connector.  Alberta Transportation supports the project and has 
committed to provide the gravel, fund the two bridges, and provide $75,000 in general 
engineering. 
 
As Highway 88 nears completion we expect a significant increase in traffic on all our 
local roads especially the 88 Connector. 
 
At the March 5, 2012 Special Council meeting the following motion was made: 
 

That Mackenzie County advertise for public tender engineering services for the 
Highway 88 Connector in its entirety for the tendering process, grading and 
construction as per the detail design to pavement ready state. 

 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
Administration has reviewed several options and price structures.  The increase in traffic 
volumes on the 88 Connector will certainly have a significant impact on the annual 
maintenance costs.  Therefore administration is proposing base paving of 12 km on the 
west end, replacing/repairing the two bridges and completing the grading on the East 15 
km all in 2012.  The east end 15 km of base paving could then proceed in 2013 with 
Resource Road Funding. 
 
 

53



Author: B. Kostiw Reviewed by:  CAO JW 
 

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 

• The estimated cost of the 12 km of base paving is 6.8 million.  To be funded from 
borrowing as approved by Council. 

• The estimated cost of the East grading is 4.0 million.  To be funded from 
borrowing as approved by Council. 

• The estimated cost for the bridges is approximately $650,000 with the County’s 
share being approximately $75,000.00. 

• Engineering is included in the above estimates. 
• The total estimated cost for all three schedules are $10,875,000 + 5% 

contingency of $600,000 for a total of $11,475,000. 
 
The intent is to tender the west end base paving as a stand alone contract ASAP.  The 
bridges and the grading would be a separate tender with the two schedules as 
recommended by Alberta Transportation.  Further to this, the base paving of the east 
end would be applied for under the Resource Road Program this fall for construction in 
2013. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Note: Council may choose to postpone the final decision making on this project until the 
subsequent budget meeting at the end of April 2012. 
 
Motion 1 
 
That Council approve tendering base paving of the west 12 km of the Highway 88 
Connector by May 2012 with construction to be completed by October 15, 2012.   
 
Note: GENIVAR would provide engineering and awarding would be subject to tenders 
meeting our estimates. 
 
Motion 2 
 
That Council approve the tendering of grading and bridge rehabilitation on the east 
portion of the Highway 88 Connector by June 12, 2012 with construction completion by 
October 15, 2012.  
 
Note: GENIVAR would be the engineers and awarding subject to costs meeting our 
estimate. 
 
Motion 3 
 
That Council approve applying for Resource Road Funding for the Highway 88 
Connector east end base paving. 
 
Note: That Council approve AMEC as the engineers for the Resource Road application 
and east end base/paving project (estimated cost of $8.5 m) 

54



55



56



57



58



Agenda Item # 8. b) 
 

Author: Colleen Nate Reviewed by  CAO Joulia Whittleton 
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2012 

Presented By: Grant Smith, Agricultural Fieldman (Agricultural Service 
Board) 

Title: Tender – High Level Flood Control Phase II 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
This tender is Phase II of a three phase project.  Length of project is 3 miles (4.8 km), 
project is located 6 miles east of the Town of High Level and will begin at the junction of 
Hwy 58 and Rge Rd 18-4. 
 
Construction will include the building of Rge Rd 18-4, to Local Road standard. 
 
See attached aerial map. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
2012 Capital Budget - Budgeted amount $541,000. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Motion 1 
That the tenders for the High Level Flood Control Phase II project be opened. 
 
Motion 2 
That the tender for the High Level Flood Control Phase II Project be awarded to the 
lowest qualifying tender. 
 

59



60



Agenda Item # 8. c) 
 

Author: D. Roberts Reviewed by:  CAO JW 
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2012 

Presented By: John Klassen – Director of Operations 

Title:  Tender - Sander/Plow Dump Truck - Zama 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Administration has identified the need for a multi-use truck in Zama that can be utilized 
through-out the year. 
 
The sander unit that is being utilized is old and in need of replacement and due to its 
size doesn’t perform the task in an efficient manner. 
 
The removal of snow from the Hamlet streets and paved portion of the Zama Access is 
performed by a rubber tire back-hoe and again is not an efficient way to perform this 
task adding extra wear to this equipment. 
 
Zama operations have no means to transport even the smallest amounts of material 
(dirt, gravel) within the hamlet. This leads to pulling resources out of Fort Vermilion, La 
Crete or hiring local contractors to perform this task. This is not a cost effective and 
efficient way to provide services. 
 
Administration has sent out an Invitation for Tender requesting; 
 

“….a 2012 or newer model, diesel powered, single rear axle conventional cab 
heavy duty truck with a minimum GVWR of 17,727 kg (39000 lbs.) Specifications 
also include sander- gravel box combination and plow.”…Closing date March 30, 
2012. 

 
See Tender Annex A 
 

61



Author: D. Roberts Reviewed by:  CAO  
 

 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
Option A: 
Purchase Multi-use Truck (Sander/Plow Dump Truck) as per the lowest qualifying 
tender. 
 
Option B: 
To reject all tenders and explore alternative options. 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
To be funded from the 2012 capital budget. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Motion 1 
 
That the Zama Plow/Sand Truck tenders be opened. 
 
Motion 2 
 
That the Zama Plow/Sand Truck tender be awarded to the lowest qualifying bidder. 
 

62



1 
 

 

Invitation for Tender 

The intent of this tender is to provide a new Plow / Sander -Dump Truck and equipment 
plus options. 

 

 Closing Date: Friday, March 30, 2012 

 

For any questions regarding the tender document, please contact: 

John Klassen 
Mackenzie County 
Phone: 780-928-3983 
Cell: 780-841-1680 
Fax: 780-928-3636 
 

For any questions regarding technical specifications, please contact: 

John Dyck 
Phone: 780-927-3718 
Cell: 780-841-1166 
 
 

 
The bid must be received by Mackenzie County, 4511 – 46 Ave,   Box 640, Fort 
Vermilion, AB, T0H 1N0 on or before 2:00 pm, local time, Friday, March 30, 
2012

63



  
 

 
 

 

            
  

    
  

  Appendix "A"  Unit Price Schedule – Sander/Plow/Dump Truck 
 

  

  Bid Item Description Unit Price Total   

  
1 Truck lump sum $____________ 

  

  
2 Combination Sander and Gravel Box lump sum $____________ 

  

  
4 Plow lump sum $____________ 

  

 
    

 

  
 Options     

  
A Wing Plow                                                          Extra $____________    

  
B Stainless Steel or Aluminum Box                    Extra $____________    

  
      

  
    

  

  
      

  
Total Schedule $____________ 

  
            

 

64



Agenda Item # 8. d) 
 

Author: John Klassen Review Date:  CAO JW 
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2012 

Presented By: John Klassen, Director of Operations 

Title: La Crete Lagoon Upgrade 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Due to the capacity constraints of the La Crete lagoon Mackenzie County engaged 
Focus in 2011 to perform a study and provide a recommendation, as per the results of 
that study Mackenzie County then instructed Focus to apply on our behalf for grant 
funding under the AMWWP program of which the County received an approval letter 
from the Province (see attached) dated February 9, 2012 committing to 59.89% of 
eligible project costs or up to $2,507,594.00. 
 
This project was presented to Council during budget deliberations and was approved 
pending provincial funding. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
This lagoon expansion is estimated to support growth of the hamlet well into the future 
and provide compliance to AB Environment regulations. 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
To be funded from the 2012 capital budget. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That Mackenzie County engages Focus Engineering to complete the detailed design 
and tender process for the La Crete lagoon project. 
 

65



66



Agenda Item # 9. a) 
 

 
Author: C. Wilcott  Reviewed by:  CAO J. Whittleton 

 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2012 

Presented By: Christopher Wilcott, Planner 

Title: 
TENDER OPENING - 1:00 p.m. 
Sale of Land - Plan 052 2048, Block 4, Lot 3  
(Lake Side Estates - La Crete) 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The subject lands are the former Municipal Reserve lot within Lake Side Estates in La 
Crete. These lands were closed for the purpose of sale by Bylaw 687-08 and given a 
variance by Bylaw 705-09 for the purpose of subdivision. This process was initiated by 
the Parks and Recreation Committee who recommended that parks within the Hamlets 
be placed within high density residential areas instead of Country Residential areas.  
 
At the March 15, 2012 Council meeting, the following motion was made: 
 

Motion 12-03-187 That Plan 052 2048, Block 4, Lot 3 be made available for sale 
by sealed tender closing at 1:00 p.m., Wednesday, April 11, 
2012 and be subject to subdivision of the lands as shown in 
Bylaw 705-09. Further, that a reserved bid be set at 80% of the 
2010 appraised value.  

 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
The sale of the lands is subject to the purchaser subdividing and servicing the lands 
prior to any construction/development. Cost of subdivision includes, but is not limited to, 
payment of off-site levies, engineering, surveying, water and sewer servicing, 
endeavour to assist and access construction.  
 
The current value of the lands is: 

- $46,980 assessed value 2012 
- $55,000 appraised value 2010 

67



Author: C. Wilcott Reviewed by:  CAO J. Whittleton 
 

 
The estimated sale value of the two subdivided lots is $80,000 ($40,000/lot).  

 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Motion 1: 
 
That the tenders for the sale of Plan 052 2048, Block 4, Lot 3 (Lakeside Estates, La 
Crete) be opened. 
 
Motion 2: 
 
That Plan 052 2048, Block 4, Lot 3 (Lakeside Estates, La Crete) be sold to the highest 
qualifying bidder over the reserved bid of 80% of the 2010 appraised value. 
 
 
 

Name Tender Amount 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 
 

68



69



70



71



72



Agenda Item # 11. a) 
 

Author: J. Whittleton Review by:  CAO  
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2012 

Presented By: Joulia Whittleton, Chief Administrative Officer 

Title: Application to Repay In Part the Debenture under Bylaw 756-
10 to Alberta Capital Finance Authority 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Council approved Borrowing Bylaw 756-10 towards a cost sharing with the development 
for a new lift station construction in the Hamlet of La Crete.  An offsite levy bylaw was 
approved to collect the County’s share of the cost from future developments in the lift 
station’s service area.  The funds under Bylaw 756-10 were borrowed in 2010 with 
$100,000 paid to the developer towards the lift station equipment purchase. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
Administration had received the final cost of construction in February 2012.  An 
inspection by the County’s engineer took place in October 2011.  The conditional 
construction completion certificate (CCCC) with two minor deficiencies was issued in 
February 2012 and a recommendation was made to release the final payment to the 
developer.  The County issued the payment for the remainder of its share to the 
developer.  The final inspection is scheduled for December 2012 and the developer 
provided a security in the amount of 15% of the lift station’s cost.  This security will be 
released upon the final acceptance certificate (FAC) issuance.  
 
The project’s estimated cost was higher than originally anticipated: 
 

 Estimated Cost Actual Cost 
County $375,240 $222,403.63 
Developer $269,760 $154,551.67 
Total $636,000 $376,955.30 

 
The difference in the County’s share is $152,836.37.   
 
 

73



Author: J. Whittleton Review by:  CAO  
 

The Municipal Government Act states: 
 

Use of borrowed money 
 
253(1) Money obtained by a municipality under a borrowing must be used for the 
purpose for which it is borrowed. 

 
Administration recommends that a portion of the borrowed funds be returned to ACFA 
and has drafted the application to repay (attached). 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
The debenture liability will be reduced by the amount of repayment.  The cash draw will 
be from the General Capital Reserve (contains the excess funds from this borrowing). 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That administration be authorized to submit the application to repay in part the 
debenture borrowed under Bylaw 756-10 (La Crete Lift Station) as presented with 
$152,836.37 plus accrued interest and stop-loss settlement coming from the General 
Capital Fund.  

74



75



76



   

      APPENDIX J 
   FORM D 

 
 APPLICATION TO PREPAY A LOAN  
 TO THE ALBERTA CAPITAL FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 

 The Mackenzie County hereby applies to the Alberta Capital Finance Authority to prepay a 

debenture in part on the 5th day of April, 2012. 

The details of the debenture are as follows: 

 Debenture No. 27 or Loan Account No.  ___________________ 

 By-law No.  756/10 

 Original Par Value $376,202 

 Rate of Interest 4.124% 

 Principal Amount to be Repaid $152,836.37 

 IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED that the funds available to prepay this debenture in part result 

from: 

 

 actual project cost being less than the amount borrowed from ACFA; 

 prepayments by the affected property owners; 

 accumulated surpluses of the local authority; 

 borrowing from a financial institution other than ACFA; or, 

 other (describe) ________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

This application and certificate is signed and dated this __________ day of ____________, (Year) ___. 

         _____________________________  
         Signature 
 
         _____________________________  
         Title 
 
 
****A cheque must be available to ACFA for deposit or a wire transfer to credit ACFA’s bank account on 
the payment date selected.

77



   

78



BYLAW NO. 756-10 
 

BEING A BYLAW OF THE  
MACKENZIE COUNTY 

(hereinafter referred to as “the County”) 
IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA 

 
 
This bylaw authorizes the Council of the County to incur indebtedness by the 
issuance of debenture(s) up to a maximum of $376,202, for the purpose of 
financing the La Crete Lift Station construction to serve NE 10-106-15-W5, NW 11-
106-15-W5 and SW 11-106-15-W5. 
 
WHEREAS, the Council of the County has decided to issue a by-law pursuant to the 
Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000 c. M-26, Section 258 to authorize the financing 
of the La Crete Lift Station Construction to serve NE 10-106-15-W5, NW 11-106-15-W5 
and SW 11-106-15-W5 as approved by Council in capital expenditures; and 
 
WHEREAS, plans and specifications have been prepared and the total cost of the 
project is estimated to be $636,000; 
 
WHEREAS, in order to complete the project it will be necessary for the County to 
borrow the sum of $376,202 for a period not to exceed 20 years, from the Alberta 
Capital Finance Authority or another authorized financial institution, by the issuance of 
debentures and on the terms and conditions referred to in this bylaw; and 
 
WHEREAS, the estimated lifetime of the project financed under this by-law is equal to, 
or in excess of 25 years; and  
 
WHEREAS, the principal amount of the outstanding debt of the County at December 
31, 2009 is $11,713,171 and no part of the principal or interest is in arrears; and 
 
WHEREAS, all required approvals for the project have been obtained and the project is 
in compliance with all Acts and Regulations of the Province of Alberta. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE COUNTY DULY ASSEMBLED, 
ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. That for the purpose of completing construction of the La Crete Lift Station to 
serve NE 10-106-15-W5, NW 11-106-15-W5 and SW 11-106-15-W5 the sum of 
Three Hundred Seventy Six Thousand and Two Hundred and Two 
($376,202) dollars be borrowed from the Alberta Capital Finance Authority or 
another authorized financial institution by way of debenture on the credit and 
security of the County at large. 

 

79



Bylaw 756-10 Borrowing Bylaw  Page 2 
La Crete Lift Station Construction to serve  
NE 10-106-15-W5, NW 11-106-15-W5 and SW 11-106-15-W5 
 
 

2. The proper officers of the County are hereby authorized to issue debenture(s) on 
behalf of the County for the amount and purpose as authorized by this by-law, 
namely the La Crete Lift Station construction to serve NE 10-106-15-W5, NW 11-
106-15-W5 and SW 11-106-15-W5. 

 
3. The County shall repay the indebtedness according to the repayment structure in 

effect, namely annual or semi-annual equal payments of combined principal and 
interest instalments not to exceed TWENTY (20) years calculated at a rate not 
exceeding the interest rate fixed by the Alberta Capital Finance Authority or 
another authorized financial institution on the date of the borrowing, and not to 
exceed TEN (10%) percent. 

 
4. The County shall levy and raise in each year municipal taxes sufficient to pay the 

indebtedness. 
 

5. The indebtedness shall be contracted on the credit and security of the County. 
 

6. The net amount borrowed under the by-law shall be applied only to the project 
specified by this by-law. 

 
7. This by-law comes into force on the date it is passed. 

 
 
READ a first time this 9th day of March, 2010. 
 
ADVERTISED during the weeks of March 17th and 24th, 2010 
 
READ a second time this 11th day of May, 2010. 
 
READ a third time and finally passed this 11th day of May, 2010. 
 
 

(original signed) 
Greg Newman 
Reeve 
 
 
(original signed) 
William Kostiw 
Chief Administrative Officer 
 

 

80



BYLAW NO. 763-10 
 

BEING A BYLAW OF THE 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 

IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA 
 

A BYLAW OF THE MACKENZIE COUNTY 
FOR THE IMPOSITION OF AN OFFSITE LEVY 

 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000 c. M-26, enables 
Council by Bylaw to provide for the imposition and payment of an off-site levy in respect 
of land to be developed or subdivided; 
 
WHEREAS, an off-site levy may be used only to pay for all or part of the capital cost for 
new or expanded facilities for the storage, transmission, treatment or supplying of water; 
and new or expanded facilities for the treatment, movement or disposal of sanitary 
sewage, 
 
AND WHEREAS, the plans have been prepared and the estimated cost of the lift 
station construction is $632,000 with $375,240 (59%) to be funded by the County and 
259,120 (471%) to be funded by a developer, 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Council of Mackenzie County, in the Province of Alberta, duly 
assembled, hereby enacts as follows: 
 
1. The Municipality, in its discretion may impose an off-site levy. 
 
2. The off-site levy shall be for the provision of sewer service by the installation of 

sanitary sewer lift station in order to serve the future development identified as 
Service Area in Schedule “A” and as outlined in Schedule “B” attached hereto.   

 
3. The Administration of Mackenzie County shall enter into an agreement in respect 

to payment of the off-site levy with all affected land owners. 
 
4. When a subdivision is requested and an application is submitted, the agreement 

as per Article 3 of this bylaw shall form a part of the developer’s agreement.  The 
off-site levy payment shall be made prior to registration of the subdivision.  

 
5. The off-site levy charges for this project shall be $1,682.69 per acre.  
 
6. The off-site levy was calculated as follows: 

 
Total County cost of $375,240 divided by 223 acres equals $1,682.69 per 
acre to cover the costs of the sanitary sewer lift station installation. 

 

81



Mackenzie County  Page 2 of 4 
Bylaw 763-10 Off-Site Levy 
 
 
7. This bylaw comes into force at the beginning of the day of third and final reading 

thereof. 
 
 
READ a first time this 11th day of May, 2010. 
 
READ a second time this 8th day of July, 2010. 
 
READ a third time and finally passed this 8th day of July, 2010. 
 
 
 

(original signed) 
Greg Newman 
Reeve 
 
 
(original signed) 
William Kostiw 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

82



Mackenzie County  Page 3 of 4 
Bylaw 763-10 Off-Site Levy 
 
 

BYLAW NO. 763-10 
 

SCHEDULE “A” 
 

1. The off site levy shall be imposed on the residential parcels according to the Service 
Area as follows: 
 

 
 

83



Mackenzie County  Page 4 of 4 
Bylaw 763-10 Off-Site Levy 
 
 

BYLAW NO. 763-10 
 

SCHEDULE “B” 
 

2. That the off site levy be imposed on the following areas: 
 

Land Location Serviceable Acres 

SW 11-106-15-W5M 84.04 

Plan 072 4450, Block 1, Lot 2 4.00 

Part of SW 11-106-15-W5M 4.96 

Part of NW 11-106-15-W5M 9.68 

NW 11-106-15-W5M 120.32 

TOTAL 223.00 Acres 
 
 

84



Agenda Item # 11. b) 
 

Author: J. Whittleton Reviewed by:  CAO  
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2012 

Presented By: Joulia Whittleton, Chief Administrative Officer 

Title: 2011 Audited Financial Statements 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Each municipality must prepare annual financial statements in accordance with MGA 
s.276 following GAP and applicable Minister’s regulations.   
 
Each municipality must prepare a financial information return in accordance with MGA 
s.277 following the Minister’s requirements respecting the accounting principles and 
standards to be used in preparing the return. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
The Finance Committee will be reviewing the management letter and the statements in 
detail at their April 26, 2011 meeting. 
 
The County’s appointed auditor from Wilde & Company will present Council with the 
audit report and the audited financial statements. 
 
Please review the attached draft financial statements. 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: (Requires 2/3) 
 
That the 2011 Audited Financial Statements be approved as presented. 
 

85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



Agenda Item # 11. c) 
 

Author: J. Whittleton Reviewed By:  CAO  
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2012 

Presented By: Joulia Whittleton, Chief Administrative Officer 

Title: Seniors Housing 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Seniors’ housing services have been provided by Mackenzie Housing Management 
Board with the lodge located in the Hamlet of La Crete.  Three local municipalities have 
been requisitioned for this service proportionate to their equalized assessments. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
A Tri-council Committee has been established to discuss and bring recommendations to 
their respective council’s in regards to the seniors’ housing authority changes to 
accommodate the regional needs. 
 
The Tri-council Committee met on April 3, 2012.  Please see the attached draft minutes. 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That Council support the recommendation of the Tri-Council Seniors Housing 
Committee to request that the Province provide a consultant to assist the municipalities 
to determine a suitable organization structure of an amalgamated management body 
and that the process be complete within 90 days. 
 

109



110



 
TRI-COMMITTEE MEETING 
High Level, AB 
Town Hall RM 110 at 7:00 p.m. 
April 3, 2012 

 
UNAPPROVED MINUTES 

IN ATTENDANCE 
 
Committee Members 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Staff 
 
 
 
 
 
Other 

 
 
Wally Olorenshaw 
Leigh Bateman 
Peter Ernst 
Ellis Forest 
Jackie Bateman 
John W. Dreidger 
 
 
Dean Krause 
Rosemary Offrey 
Joulia Whittleton 
Roechelle Gaudet 
 
 
Mike Leathwood 

 
 
Councillor Rainbow Lake (Chair) 
Councillor Rainbow Lake 
Mayor High Level 
Councillor High Level  
Councillor Mackenzie County 
Councillor Mackenzie County 
 
 
CAO High Level 
CAO Rainbow Lake 
CAO Mackenzie County 
Municipal Clerk High Level 
 
 
Assistant Deputy Minister of 
Housing Municipal Affairs 
 
  
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Chairperson Councillor Wally Olorenshaw called the meeting 

to order at 7:04 p.m. 
  
2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 Moved by Jackie Bateman 

THAT the Tri-Committee adopt the April 3, 2012 Agenda as 
presented. 
 
In Favour:  6    Opposed:  0 
CARRIED 

  
3.  ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

3.1  Adpotion of the February 7, 
2012 Tri-Committee Meeting Minutes  

Moved by John W. Dreidger 
THAT the Tri-Committee adopt the February 7, 2012 Tri-
Committee meeting minutes as amended with the next 
meeting date changed from March 14, 2012 to April 3, 2012.  
 
In Favour:   6    Opposed: 0 
CARRIED 

 
 

111



Tri-Committee Meeting Minutes 
April 3, 2012 

 

2 

4.  BUSINESS 

4.1  Municipalities Decision on Board 
Structure Recommendation 
 

• Town of High Level 
• Mackenzie County 
• Town of Rainbow Lake 

 

  
4.2  Discussion on Board Structure Moved by John Dreidger 

THAT the Committee bring forward to their Councils a 
recommendation to ask the Province to provide a consultant to 
assist the municipalities to determine a suitable organization 
structure of an amalgamated management body and that the 
process be complete within 90 days. 
 
In Favour: 6    Opposed:  0 
CARRIED 

  
5.  NEXT MEETING DATE AND HOST 

5.1  Next Meeting Date and Host To be announced 

  

6.  ADJOURNMENT 

 Moved by Chairman Wally Olorenshaw  
 
THAT the April 3, 2012 Tri-Committee meeting be adjourned at 
7:59pm. 
 
In Favour: 6    Opposed: 0 

 
 

112



Agenda Item # 11. d) 
 

Author: J. Whittleton Reviewed By:  CAO  
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2012 

Presented By: Joulia Whittleton, Chief Administrative Officer 

Title: 2012 Budget, LUF Workshop and Council Workshop Meeting 
Dates 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
In order to undertake a review of various budget and planning documents, 
administration requests that Council set some meeting dates. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 

1. 2012 Budget – Final Budget Review – April 23, 2012 at 12:00 pm  
2. Land use Planning Framework Workshop to review MMSA draft position paper  – 

April 30, 2012 
3. Council Workshop – May 14 or 30, 2012 

 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That the following meeting dates be set: 

• 2012 Budget - ___________________________________ 

• Land Use Planning Framework - _____________________ 

• Council Workshop - _______________________________ 

113



114



115



116



Agenda Item # 11. e) 
 

Author: C. Gabriel Reviewed By:  CAO  
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2012 

Presented By: Joulia Whittleton, Chief Administrative Officer 

Title: 2012 Ratepayer Meetings 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The County holds ratepayer meetings annually in La Crete, Fort Vermilion, High Level 
Rural, and Zama.   
 
Suggested meeting dates are as follows (all meetings will begin at 7:00 p.m.): 

• June 11, 2012 – Rocky Lane 
• June 12, 2012 – Fort Vermilion 
• June 18, 2012 – La Crete 
• June 25, 2012 – Zama 

 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
To present the audited financial statements and conduct public engagement as per 
Council’s Business Plan. 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
2012 Operating Budget 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That the 2012 annual ratepayer meetings be held as follows: 

• June 11, 2012 – Rocky Lane 
• June 12, 2012 – Fort Vermilion 
• June 18, 2012 – La Crete 
• June 25, 2012 – Zama 

117



118



Agenda Item # 11. f) 
 

Author: C. Gabriel Reviewed by:  CAO  
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2012 

Presented By: Joulia Whittleton, Chief Administrative Officer 

Title:  FCM Conference 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
At the November 8, 2011 Council meeting, five Councillors were approved to attend the 
FCM Conference in Saskatoon from June 1 – 4, 2012. 
 
Since that time another Councillor has expressed interest in attending this conference.  
However according to Section 13. b) of the Honorariums and Expense bylaw, which 
states “workshops, conferences, conventions that have been approved by Council prior 
to submission of expense claim,” approval is required by Council. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
$850.00 - Registration Fee 
Travel and Accommodation expenses 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
For discussion. 
 
 

119



120



Agenda Item # 12. a) 
 

Author: C. Gabriel Review by:  CAO  
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2012 

Presented By: Joulia Whittleton, Interim Chief Administrative Officer 

Title: Information/Correspondence 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The following items are attached for your information, review, and action if required. 
  

• Action List  
• Emergency Medical Services Week  
• Seniors Week  
• Heritage Awards  
• Minister’s Awards for Municipal Excellence  
•   
•   
•   
•   
•   
•   
•   
•   
•   

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That the information/correspondence items be accepted for information purposes. 

121



Council Meeting Action List  Page 1 of 5 
28-Mar-12 

Mackenzie County 
Action List as of March 28, 2012 

 
Council Meeting Motions Requiring Action 

 
Motion Action Required Action By Status 
 
August 11, 2009 Council Meeting 
09-08-643 That administration pursue the federal government 

in order to acquire a portion of the land for the third 
phase of the Fort Vermilion Walking Trail project as 
discussed. 
 

Joulia  
 

In Progress 

February 8, 2011 Regular Council Meeting 
11-02-129 That administration investigate options for a snow 

dump area in the La Crete area before the 2011-12 
winter season. 
 

John Planning to create an area in 
conjunction with the LC 

lagoon project 

March 8, 2011 Regular Council Meeting 
11-03-249 That the Finance Committee be authorized to 

discuss fire invoicing issues with the Town of High 
Level. 
 

Joulia 
Finance 

12-Sep-11 Special Meeting 

March 30, 2011 Regular Council Meeting 
11-03-279 That the Policy RESV016 La Crete Emergency 

Service Reserve be TABLED for further review. 
 

Al 
 

Under review 

April 12, 2011 Regular Council Meeting 
11-04-350 That administration be authorized to enter into a 

Memorandum of Understanding with the Fort 
Vermilion School Division regarding the County’s 
three year commitment to contribute $50,000 
annually towards the Rocky Lane Public School 
Agriculture Program with the funding being 
channeled through the Rocky Lane Agricultural 
Society. 
 

Joulia Rocky Lane Ag Society 
reviewing a draft agreement. 

11-04-369 That the Finance Committee be authorized to meet 
with the Town of High Level representatives to 
discuss the Airport Vicinity Protection Area, 
potable water line arrangements, the Annexation 
Agreement and the Regional Mutual Aid 
Agreement. 
 

Joulia In progress 

11-04-370 That an offer be made to Alberta Health Services to 
lease out the High Level, La Crete and Fort 
Vermilion ambulance facilities as discussed. 
 

Al 01-May-12 

May 10, 2011 Regular Council Meeting 
11-05-447 That administration be authorized to assist the La 

Crete Agricultural Society in their pursuit of 
acquiring a space for the purpose of developing a 
“Jubilee Plaza”. 
 

Joulia 02-May-12 
Jubilee Committee will bring 

forward their preferred 
location 

 

122



Motion Action Required Action By Status 
 

Council Meeting Action List  Page 2 of 5 
28-Mar-12 

11-05-451 That Council request that staff work with the La 
Crete Swimming Pool Committee to assist them in 
the development of a business plan approach for 
the La Crete Swimming Pool project. 
 

Al In progress 
 

June 29, 2011 Regular Council Meeting 
11-06-551 That Mackenzie County retract motion 11-02-150 

and 11-03-307 and award Superior Safety Codes a 
three year Safety Codes Services Contract subject 
to the current fees remaining in place for the first 
three months of the contract term and that the new 
fees as proposed by Superior Safety Codes 
commence thereafter and that the fee split be 70/30 
percent for Superior Safety Codes and Mackenzie 
County respectively.  
 

Joulia Ready for signature; QMP is 
under review with AB Safety 
Codes Council and Municipal 

Affairs 
 

Meeting with Municipal 
Affairs March 9th  

October 26, 2011 Regular Council Meeting 
11-10-865 That the County fill the ditch on the right of way 

(NW 21-106-15-W5M), level the culvert, and build a 
berm on H. Klassen’s land as per Alberta 
Environment’s request. 
 

John 
Grant 

Two of the three items have 
been completed.  Waiting for 

direction on the third item 

November 8, 2011 Regular Council Meeting 
11-11-913 That the sale of tax forfeiture public land auction 

date be set for May 1, 2012 in Fort Vermilion.  
 

Joulia 01-May-12 
 

November 30, 2011 Regular Council Meeting 
11-11-948 That administration assist the La Crete Community 

Library Society in compiling cost information for a 
stand-alone facility in conjunction with the 
Mackenzie Library Board. 
 

Al Numbers have been 
compiled and will attend 

MCLB meeting as a 
delegation to present info. 

January 23, 2012 Regular Council Meeting 
12-01-052 That the Reeve and Chief Administrative Officer be 

authorized to meet with the appropriate Canada 
Post authorities to review options regarding the La 
Crete Post Office. 
 

Joulia 05-Apr-12 

12-01-068 That Council undertakes a review of the committee 
list at their next working session. 
 

Joulia Workshop 

12-01-069 That administration be authorized to negotiate 
access options to Plan 0023789, Block 1, Lot 1 as 
discussed. 
 

Joulia 
John 
Bill 

In progress 

February 13, 2012 Regular Council Meeting 
12-02-103 That Policy RESV018 Water Reserve Fund be 

TABLED to the next meeting. 
 

John 
Joulia 

01-May-12 

February 29, 2012 Regular Council Meeting 
12-02-140 That staff be instructed to develop a hamlet 

residential waste pick up program and related 
polices for consideration by the Waste Management 
Ad Hoc Task Force and tabled for council 
consideration and action. 

Al Completed RFP and drafting 
bylaw for review by 

Committee on 27-Apr-12 

123



Motion Action Required Action By Status 
 

Council Meeting Action List  Page 3 of 5 
28-Mar-12 

 
12-02-144 That administration and the Municipal Planning 

Commission obtains public input to permit a 
minimum lot size of 55’ X 100’ for single family 
residential lots and a minimum lot size 60’ X 100’ 
for multiple family lots as well as altering the side 
yard setbacks to maximize useable yard area in 
conjunction with the Area Structure Plan reviews.   
 

Joulia To be completed during 
review of ASP’s 

12-02-155 That the Mackenzie Housing Management Board 
be invited to meet with the three municipalities and 
the Minister of Housing or designate to discuss 
seniors housing in the region. 
 

Joulia Both Towns declined the 
invitation 

 

March 5, 2012 Special Council Meeting 
12-03-159 The Mackenzie County advertise for public tender 

engineering services for the Highway 88 Connector 
in its entirety for the tendering process, grading and 
construction as per the detail design to pavement 
ready state. 
 

John 
Bill 

In progress 

March 15, 2012 Council Meeting 
12-03-177 That administration be authorized to negotiate the 

purchase of Section 27-106-13-5 and bring back 
options for Council consideration. (landfill site) 
 

Al In progress 

12-03-178 That administration research additional options and 
costs for securing a lease on Section 27-106-13-5.  
(landfill site) 
 

Al In progress 

12-03-186 That administration coordinates a public meeting on 
April 4, 2012 with the developer and the community 
regarding the proposed development of FORTVER, 
Range 2, Lot 7A and research whether Councillors 
are able to attend. 
 

Joulia April 4, 2012 

12-03-187 That Plan 052 2048, Block 4, Lot 3 be made 
available for sale by sealed tender closing at 1:00 
p.m., Wednesday, April 11, 2012 and be subject to 
subdivision of the lands as shown in Bylaw 705-09. 
Further, that a reserved bid be set at 80% of the 
2010 appraised value. 
 

Joulia April 11, 2012 

12-03-198 That administration be authorized to proceed with 
the redesign of the County logo and that options be 
presented to Council for approval. 
 

Carol In progress 

March 28, 2012 Council Meeting 
12-03-208 That the flood control project on SE 29-106-15-W5 

be referred to the Agriculture Service Board. 
 

Grant 17-Apr-12 ASB Meeting 

12-03-223 That the vote on Motion 12-03-222 for the 
Development Permit Application 20-DP-12, in the 
name of William and Gertrude Schmidt, on Plan 
902 3717, Block 1, Lot 1 (Part of SE 1-106-15-

Joulia In progress 

124



Motion Action Required Action By Status 
 

Council Meeting Action List  Page 4 of 5 
28-Mar-12 

W5M), be TABLED for further information. 
 

That Development Permit Application 20-
DP-12, in the name of William and Gertrude 
Schmidt, on Plan 902 3717, Block 1, Lot 1 
(Part of SE 1-106-15-W5M), be 
APPROVED as presented. 

 
12-03-228 That Alberta Sustainable Resource Development 

(AB SRD) be advised of Council’s support to 
postpone the April 25, 2012 agricultural land sale to 
on or before June 15, 2012 subject to AB SRD 
using the existing appraisals to set the reserved 
bids. 
 

Joulia  

12-03-230 That the County’s Tri-Council Committee members 
bring forward a recommendation to the Tri-Council 
Seniors Committee for the Mackenzie Housing 
Management Board to submit an application for 
seniors lodges. 
 

Joulia April 3, 2012 

12-03-231 That the County’s Tri-Council Committee members 
take forward on April 3, 2012 an option for 
discussion of a two tiered structure, with the top tier 
being the requisitioning board made up of 
municipally appointed members and the second tier 
being the two separate operating entities. 
 

Joulia April 3, 2012 

12-03-235 That the CAO contract be approved in principle and 
that the Reeve and Deputy Reeve be authorized to 
negotiate and finalize the CAO contract and bring it 
back to Council for information. 
 

Joulia 11-Apr-12 

12-03-240 That the County explore emergency services 
options as discussed. 
 

Al 11-Apr-12 

 

125



Motion Action Required Action By Status 
 

Council Meeting Action List  Page 5 of 5 
28-Mar-12 

Community Sustainability Plan – Action Items 
 
Tasks Responsibility Approximate Deadline 

Sustainable governance items: 

Citizen-engagement plan, formal avenues for active citizen 
involvement in strategic planning, long-term planning; 
undertake citizen satisfaction surveys; 

CAO  

Local elections – collect, keep and report to Council voter data 
from municipal elections (comparative between elections); Carol  

Review and/or establish Council Policy/Procedure on media 
communications, responding to citizens, contact with 
Government, etc.; 

CAO, Joulia, Carol  

Establish a Council Library in the Corporate Office (make a 
variety of municipal government related books and magazines 
available); 

CAO, Carol Completed 

Service delivery items: 

Review standards for the services that are delivered and 
establish a formal process to review and evaluate compliance 
with those standards; 

Joulia, John, Al, Don  

Infrastructure items: 

Review and recommend options regarding an infrastructure 
management system; Al  

Review/develop a plan for maintaining municipal infrastructure; Al, Don, John, Grant  

Economic vitality items: 

Bring options regarding establishing an annual business 
licensing; Joulia  

Risk management items: 

Review and report to Council regarding a municipal service 
continuity plan; Al, Don, John  

Review and report to Council regarding Occupational Health 
and Safety practices (inclusive of CORE certification status). Al  

 

126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138


	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:
	4ai 03-28-12 Draft Council Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Minutes of the Regular Council meeting for Mackenzie County held on March 28, 2012 in the Zama County Office.
	4. a) Minutes of the March 15, 2012 Regular Council  Meeting

	5a RFD - River Road Cable tax arrears.pdf
	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	6a RFD - MPC Minutes.pdf
	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Blank Page
	6b RFD - CAO Report.pdf
	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	6aii Monthly Report to CAO - April 2012 HOGGAN.pdf
	Monthly Report to CAO
	For the month of April, 2012
	From: Al Hoggan, Director of Community and Protective Services
	Annual Operating Programs, Projects and Activities
	Capital Projects
	Personnel
	Other

	7a RFD - La Crete Library annual operating cost.pdf
	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	8a RFD - Highway 88 Connector.pdf
	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	8b RFD-HL Flood Control Phase II Tender Opening.pdf
	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	8c RFD - Sander-Plow Truck Tender for Zama.pdf
	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	8d RFD - La Crete Lagoon Upgrade.pdf
	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	9a RFD Sale of 052 2048, 4, 3 (April 11-12).pdf
	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	11a RFD - Application to repay debenture - LC Lift Station.pdf
	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	11aii Bylaw 756-10 LC Sewer Lift Station.pdf
	BYLAW NO. 756-10
	BEING A BYLAW OF THE
	MACKENZIE COUNTY
	(hereinafter referred to as “the County”)
	IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA


	11aiii Bylaw 763-10 Offsite Levy for LC Lift Station - North Point.pdf
	SCHEDULE “A”
	BYLAW NO. 763-10
	SCHEDULE “B”

	11b RFD - 2011 Financial Statements and Audit results.pdf
	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION: (Requires 2/3)

	11c RFD - Seniors Housing.pdf
	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	11ci 2012.04.03 Tri-Committee Meeting.pdf
	1. CALL TO ORDER
	2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA
	3.  ADOPTION OF MINUTES
	3.1  Adpotion of the February 7, 2012 Tri-Committee Meeting Minutes 

	4.  BUSINESS
	4.1  Municipalities Decision on Board Structure Recommendation
	4.2  Discussion on Board Structure

	5.  NEXT MEETING DATE AND HOST
	5.1  Next Meeting Date and Host
	6.  ADJOURNMENT

	11d RFD - Meetings.pdf
	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	11e RFD - Ratepayer Meetings.pdf
	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	11f RFD - FCM Conference.pdf
	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	12a RFD - Information-Correspondence.pdf
	Request For Decision

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



